
 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
July 21, 2022 
 
 

Page 1 of 3 

 

   

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS BUSINESS MEETING 

July 21, 2022 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Call to Order: Chairman Neights called the hybrid live/virtual meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Protocol for Hybrid Meetings: Chairman Neights provided an overview of the protocols for public 

participation for members of the public attending the meeting virtually over Zoom. 

 

Roll Call:   

a. The following Board members were in attendance: Chairman Neights, Vice-Chair Coless, 

Supervisor Darby, and Supervisor MacFarland via Zoom. Supervisor Sorgini was absent. 

b. Also, in attendance were: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager; Michael Clarke and Nicole Feight, 

Township Solicitors; Tim Woodrow, Township Engineer; Mike Mrozinski, Community 

Development Director; Joe Chillano, Public Works Director; Michael Jackson, Chief of Police and 

Student Representative Anna Rozinsky. 

 

Chairman’s Comments 

Chairman Neights announced that an executive session was held prior to the meeting on July 21, 2022 to 

discuss land acquisition, legal and personnel matters. An Executive Session was also held on July 13 to 

discuss potential litigation. Chairman Neights announced that the 420 Church Rd. subdivision matter has 

been removed from the agenda and will come before the Board at the August 18, 2022 meeting. 

 

1) Presentations 

A) Introduction of new Director of Human Resources Kristin Maas 

i) Township Manager Mentry introduced Kristin Maas to the Board and the public. A brief 

biography was read. Ms. Maas will begin employment on August 1, 2022. 

B) Commendations of Life Saving – Police Department and EMS  

i) Police Chief Jackson presented a Commendation of Life Saving to Officer Devon Auge, 

Corporal Michael Slattery, and civilian Edward Lehan, and EMS Chief Reynolds presented a 

Commendation of Life Saving to Paramedic Katelyn Dean. These commendations were in 

recognition of swift action taken in response to an incident on March 18, 2022. 

C) Student Representative report from Anna Rozinsky 

D) Municipal energy resilience by adopting distributed energy resources (DER) 

i) Chairman Neights introduced Dennis Rowan, an energy consultant with REIV2G. Mr. 

Rowan presented to the Board on energy resilience for municipalities and the various 

distributed energy resources options that the Township can consider when making capital and 

infrastructure improvements.  

 

2) Consent Agenda  

i) MOTION: Vice-Chair Coless made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 1(a), 1(b), 

and 1(c) including moving the meeting minutes of the June 16, 2022, business meeting and 

the June 17, 2022 workshop, into the record, authorizing payment of the bills totaling 

$802,985.31, and approving escrow releases of $30,980.69 for Audubon Square V and 

$87,942.00 for the Courts at Brynwood Phase II. Supervisor Darby seconded the motion.   



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
July 21, 2022 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 

 

   

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii) The motion passed 4-0. 

 

3) New Business 

A) Consideration of request for waiver of land development at 3922 Ridge Pike 

i) Mike Mrozinski discussed a waiver of land development at 3922 Ridge Pike. The property 

owner is proposing a minor addition on the existing building and some minor site work 

including adding some parking spaces. Brian Bischof of Affiliated Trades Credit Union was 

present to answer questions from the Board.  

ii) No action was taken. This item was tabled for the next meeting or until such time that the 

applicant’s engineer coordinates with the Township Engineer to address unresolved issues 

such as sidewalk along Ridge Pike 

 

B) Consideration of truck purchase proposal. 

i) E.J. Mentry, Township Manager, presented a request from Public Works Director Joe 

Chillano for the purchase of a 2023 Ford F450 Bucket Truck for $121,600 and a 2024 

International Dump Truck including plow, spreader and anti-icing unit for $240,380. Both 

trucks are from COSTARS vendors and the funding will come from the Township’s 

American Rescue Plan allocation. 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve the purchase of the two trucks. 

Chairman Neights seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 4-0. 

 

C) Consideration of real estate tax audit proposal 

i) E.J. Mentry, Township Manager, discussed the real estate tax audit proposal from BBD and 

recommended the Board approve the proposal. 

ii) MOTION: Chairman Neights made a motion to approve the real estate tax audit proposal. 

Vice-Chair Coless seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 4-0. 

 

D) Appointment to fill unexpired term on the Environmental Advisory Council 

i) Chairman Neights discussed an appointment to fill unexpired term on the EAC. The EAC 

reviewed numerous applicants for the vacancy and voted at their July 18, 2022 meeting to 

recommend the appointment of Amber Minnick to fill the vacancy.  

ii) MOTION: Vice-Chair Coless made a motion to approve the appointment of Amber Minnick 

to fill the unexpired term on the EAC, conditioned on her signing the Ethics Verification 

Form in compliance with the Township Ethics Resolution #2021-16. Supervisor Darby 

seconded the motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 4-0. 

 

E) Consideration of Resolution 22-21, approving application for Montgomery County 

Transportation Program grant 

i) E.J. Mentry, Township Manager, discussed Resolution 22-21 to authorize a grant application 

for the Montgomery County Transportation Program for intersection improvements at 

Germantown Pike and Evansburg Road. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
July 21, 2022 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 

 

   

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Darby made a motion to approve Resolution 22-21, application for 

Montgomery County Transportation Program grant. Supervisor MacFarland seconded the 

motion. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 4-0. 

 

F) Appointment of special counsel to the Board of Supervisors 

i) Tabled to the next meeting or until such time that Board action is necessary. 

 

4) Announcements/Meetings 

A) Zoning Hearing Board meeting – July 28 at 7:00 p.m. 

B) Sewer Authority – August 10 at 4:30 p.m. 

C) Environmental Advisory Council – August 15 at 6:00 p.m. 

D) Library Board meeting – August 15 at 7:00 p.m. 

E) Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee - August 17 - Cancelled. 

F) Planning Commission meeting –August 24 at 7:00 p.m. 

G) Zoning Hearing Board – August 25 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

5) Comments and other Business 

A) Supervisor MacFarland - Regional Sewer Authority project is expected to be completed in 

August. Library Board active discussion about an expansion. 

B) Vice-Chair Coless – Park and Recreation Board had meeting and discussed the Capital budget 

plan. The Comprehensive plan will be wrapping up and the documentation for the plan should be 

available in September. 

C) Chairman Neights – EAC will have a Fall Festival table and possible electric vehicle display. 

The EAC has also requested the Board consider amending the EAC Ordinance to expand the 

membership of the committee by adding two additional voting members and two non-voting 

alternates. Supervisor Darby and Chairman Neights attended a regional event at Upper 

Providence Township.  

 

6) Courtesy of the Floor  

A) John Pell, Audubon Road – Asked about the Harley Davidson Building turning into a homeless 

shelter. 

B) Bob Garrett, Lantern Lane – Asked for an update on the Audubon Elementary School project. 

Also asked for attention along Rittenhouse to Egypt which is full of debris. 

C) Colleen Eckman, Camiel Lane – Asked about the Harley Davidson Building turning into a 

homeless shelter. 

 

7) Adjournment 

A) Chairman Neights announced that the Board will be going into Executive Session after the 

meeting is adjourned to discuss potential litigation and personnel matters. 

B) MOTION:  Supervisor Darby made a motion to adjourn. Vice-Chair Coless seconded the 

motion. The motion passed 4-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:42 PM. 

 

Next Business Meetings:  August 18, 2022 (No meeting the first Thursday of August) 

    September 1, 2022 

     



Minutes of Lower Providence Environmental Advisory Council Meeting – June 20, 2022 

 

The meeting began at 6:00 PM.  Council members Erin McCool, Joseph Lulis, Douglas White, John 

Zollers, Irene Bijou, and Madison Roeger were present.   

 

1. Approval of Minutes. Mr. White made a motion to approve the minutes of the March 21, 2022 EAC 

meeting, seconded by Mr. Lulis. Motion passed 4-0.  

 

2. Old Business 

 

2a. Subcommittee Reports.  

 

Education / Community Engagement 

 

Ms. Roeger noted ongoing efforts to recruit volunteers. Ms. McCool noted that Fall Fest is coming up 

and asked Council members to think about possible events and activities the Council could support. 

 

Stormwater 

 

E.J. Mentry passed message along that education for residents is an important need. Discussion ensued 

about resources for residents regarding flooding help, including possibility of helping residents connect 

with neighbors who could help.  

 

A possible event targeted for September was discussed including the following elements: 

 

• Long-range vs short-range prevention and impact 

• “Kiss the Ground” movie on regenerative agriculture and effects on stormwater 

• Various yard soil improvement techniques 

• A resident in attendance noted the difficulty of coping with the vast amount of information and 

misinformation which exists on stormwater and yard improvement topics 

• A “better yard” tour including stops at Mr. Lulis’ and Mr. Zollers’ houses and Martha’s Gardens 

community garden.  

 

The possibility of an EAC Instragram account was also raised again, and Ms. Roeger noted that she is 

drafting flyers to promote the EAC that will be circulated among the EAC for review.  

 

Built Infrastructure 

 

A brief discussion was held about the Google Earth KMZ file Mr. Zollers circulated among the EAC 

noting locations of easily and inexpensively implemented improvements for walkability in the 

township.  

 

A brief discussion of Brightview Landscaping’s proposed solar panel installation clarified that solar 

panels are proposed on a canopy over a parking area. A presentation to the EAC by Brightview 

representatives is being sought.  

 

Green Energy 

 



Mr. White noted that the electric car event at Ursinus could have been better advertised, and noted that 

the township energy audit would be looking at street lights that can be converted to LED bulbs.  

 

2b. Comprehensive Plan Update. No updates. 

 

3. New Business 

 

3a. Three candidates have submitted documents of interest towards the opening on the EAC. Extensive 

discussion of various ideas for handling the existing vacancy ensued, including the possibility of 

expanding the EAC to seven members to account for the interested parties, inviting the candidates to a 

future meeting to discuss their interest. It was decided to table discussion until the Board of Supervisors 

could vote on expanding the EAC. 

 

3b, 3c, 3d were all tabled. 

 

4. Comments and other Business 

 

Ms. McCool noted that the Fishing Derby at Hoy Park went smoothly and was a great day.  

 

Ms. McCool noted that Penn Environment had reached out about presenting to the EAC about a plastic 

bag ordinance. Mr. Roeger began a discussion about sustainable packaging by recounting her recent 

experience with reusable Wawa bags in Ocean City, NJ. Further discussion about ways to encourage 

township businesses to utilize sustainable (biodegradable, reusable) packing materials.  

 

A suggestion was made to invite a member of the local SBA to contribute to EAC meetings.  

 

Mr. Lulis made a motion to modify the start time of future EAC meetings to 7:00, which was seconded 

by Mr. White and passed 4-0. The change in start time is intended to make attendance more convenient 

around work and family schedules.  

 

Ms. Bijou noted that July will be her last meeting with the EAC.  

 

5. Courtesy of the Floor 

 

No comments. 

 

6. Adjournment 

 

Mr. Lulis made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mr. Zollers. Motion passed 4-0.  

  



  



 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP    

PARKS & RECREATION 

June 21, 2022, MEETING MINUTES 

 

1) Call to Order. 

A)  Amy Johnston-Smith called the meeting to order at 7:10 p.m.  

2) Pledge of Allegiance 

3) Roll Call: 

A) The following Parks & Recreation board members were in attendance: Amy Johnston-Smith, Beth Ann 

Mazza, Ray Lotfi, Jean Akers. Erin Di Paolo, Stephanie Padula and Michelle Brown were absent.  

B) Also, in attendance:  Karen Hegedus, Recreational Superintendent, Student Rep. Kristen Riddell and 

Riley McDonald.  

4) Meeting Minutes: 

A) Review/Approve meeting minutes of April 15, 2022. 

B)  MOTION: Beth Ann Mazza made a motion to approve minutes of April 15, 2022, Ray Lotfi seconded 

the motion. The motion passed 5-0. 

 

5) Old Business  

A) Park Tour – Saturday May 14th was cancelled due to scheduling conflicts 

B) We are accepting applications for our 2022-2023 Hometown Heroes Banner Program 

C) Meet, Greet and Eat event – Meet your township staff – 6/11/2022. Police, Fire Department, Ambulance 

attended, Kona Ice also was there. 

D) June 18th – Fishing Derby was held at Hoy Park. 

 

6) New Business 

A) Summer Camp – Started June 20th, approximately 100 campers at each Camp site. Lil Perky sold out.  

B) Concerts in the Park – Southern Edge Band – Sunday, June 26th @ 6:00pm 

C) July 4th – Fireworks Show and DJ – 7:30pm. Kona Ice and LPT Optimist will be in attendance 

D) Movie in the Park – Encanto @ dusk Wednesday, July 20th. 

 

 

7)   Board Comments  

A)  Ray Lotfi, Parks Committee, updated us on the request to plant trees. H also inquired about the Capital 

Projects and asked when the projects were going to be complete for 2022. Ray informed by Jane 

Delaney, Parks and Recreation Director, on the procedures and protocols of the Capital Projects getting 

approved moving forward. 

  

8)  Supervisor Liaison Report 

Cara Coless was not in attendance. 

 

9) Motion to Adjourn. 

A) MOTION:  Jean Akers made a motion to adjourn. Beth Ann Mazza seconded the motion. The motion 

passed 5-0. The meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 

 

Next Meeting: July 19, 2022 

























LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

JULY 2022 

Denise Walsh Page 1 of 2 8/9/2022 

 

HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Communications / Community Outreach 

 

▪ Website and social media posts of note: 

• Employment opportunities 

▪ Director of Finance 

▪ Sewer Authority Administrative Assistant 

• Statements regarding Resources for Human Development (RHD) submissions 

• Installation of new drinking fountains (w/ bottle fillers & pet stations) – Eagleville 

and Eskie parks 

• Sewer Authority’s Summit Ave. road work  

• Share of LP Police post - new 988 Suicide & Crisis Hotline 

• Share of PennDOT hiring event 

• Comp Plan web survey 

• Park and Rec events, programs 

• Monthly board/commission meetings 

• Good Morning LP 
 

Work began on the fall newsletter; anticipated delivery is mid-September. 

 

Right-to-Know Office 

 

During the month, requests for information under the Right-to-Know Law were logged and 

processed, totaling 8 police and 11 non-police. (Copies of reports prepared as a result of an 

accident investigation conducted by the Lower Providence Township Police Department are now  

obtained through Carfax.) 

 

ON-GOING RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Community Relations 

▪ Website 

▪  Facebook, Twitter and Instagram posts  

▪ Press releases 

▪ Constant Contact emails 

▪ Cable Access Channel posts 

▪ Trash & recycling concerns 

 

Administration 

▪ Weekly email to Board of Supervisors with informational items 

▪ Legal advertisements as needed 

▪ Scheduling, correspondence and miscellaneous tasks as needed 

▪ Preparation and distribution of Board agenda packets 

 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

JULY 2022 

Denise Walsh Page 2 of 2 8/9/2022 

 

Administration on-going responsibilities cont. 

 

▪ Completion of post-Board of Supervisor meeting tasks, including posting of meeting 

summary and approved minutes on website 

▪ Attendance at staff-solicitor meetings; preparation and distribution of meeting notes 

▪ Maintenance of Resolution, Minute and Ordinance books 
 

Meetings 
▪ Staff budget meeting - July 1 

▪ J.P. Mascaro - July 28 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Denise Walsh 

Community Relations Coordinator 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 

 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 
     
FROM:  Susan C. Law 
   
DATE:  August 9, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: July 2022 Finance Department Monthly Report   
 

 
Budget 

• The budget module in the financial software was opened on July 11, 2022. 
Department heads had a deadline of August 3, 2022 to enter their 2022 year-end 
projections and 2023 requests for their departments. 5-year capital project 
requests were also due on August 3, 2022. 

• I assisted some departments heads with some projections and training on 
financial software as well as contacting Freedom Systems for some software 
issues. 

• Started working on year-end projections and 2023 requests for all accounts not 
dedicated to a specific department in the General Fund and all other funds not 
assigned to department heads. 
 

Miscellaneous 

• Various HR tasks assisting Roseann McGrath. 

• Approved and submitted invoices in the PennDOT ECMS system for the 
Park/Crawford/Eagleville intersection project. 

• Quarterly PSATS Unemployment Comp and LST calculations and payments. 

• Completed setup of ACH positive pay on our TD Bank accounts. This insures that 
no unauthorized withdrawals occur on any of our accounts. 

• CBIZ representatives conducted an employee meeting on June 28, 2022 and met 
individually with interested employees to discuss their personal 
retirement/investment plans. I processed multiple 457 contribution changes for 
employees after the employee meeting with CBIZ. 

• Researched agreements with the Library. 

• Responded to several residents asking for property tax information. Referred 
them to tax collector Mike Deal. 

• Covered for Tina Blain for a week while she was on vacation. 

• Provided information for the Workers’ Comp audit. 

• Contacted current auditors to provide a proposal for auditing services for two 
additional years. 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5900   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

 

Fire Marshal & Emergency Management Coordinator 

July 2022 Report 

During the month of July 2022:  

 

• Lower Providence Fire Department responded to 39 emergency incidents within the 

Township 

• Achieved re-certification through the Pennsylvania Department of Health as an 

Emergency Medical Technician 

• Developed and distributed Incident Action Plan for 4th of July Fireworks event 

• Posted several properties with Zoning Hearing Board information 

• Continued annual business license inspections 

• Participated in Continuity of Operations class presented by FEMA 

• Issued one block party permit 

o Peacock Drive 

• Attended a hoarding class presented by Montgomery County Office of Public Health 

• Continued pre-plan inspections of businesses 

• Signed up for ten classes being offered through the Montgomery County Fire 

Academy 

 

Notes: PEMA is changing the certification requirements for Emergency Management 

Coordinators. I’ll continue following their updates and taking classes as they’re offered. 



 

 
 

 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PARKS AND RECREATION 

 
MONTHLY REPORT  

July 
 

Administration: 
 

• Daily communication with Joe Chillano, Director of Public Works, to discuss job tasks/duties for   

parks crew. 

• Met with the Chief and the Fire Marshal to discuss the July 4th event in full detail. We discussed 

safety, staffing, and parking concerns for the event. I also met with the Public Works crew and 

Parks and Recreation staff to address the event details. 

• Our 26th Annual All-American Fireworks Show was a huge success! The Lower Providence 

Community was well represented and enjoyed the Fireworks show! 

• Monthly CCFees 

• Met with Park and Recreation staff throughout the month to prepare for future programs/trips, 

and special events. 

• We sold 23 discounted Movie Tavern tickets in July. Movie Tavern tickets are sold for $8.50 year 

-round.  

• We sold 57 discounted Regal Movie ticket. Movie tickets are sold at a discounted price of $10.00 

per ticket year- round. 

• Summer discount tickets are now available to the public for the area amusement parks. In July, 

we sold 4 Adventure Aquarium tickets, 19 Dutch Wonderland tickets, 10 knoebels tickets, and 4 

Morey’s Pier tickets. This year PRPS is offering tickets for Six Flags, Dorney Park and many 

more attractions via online purchasing only and is available on our website for the public to 

partake in. 

• We continue to offer Memorial Donation Program which allows residents to purchase a bench, a 

tree, or a brick in a loved one’s honor and have it placed in a special location in one of our 

beautiful parks. 

• We continue to offer our Hometown Heroes Program and have been replacing the banners 

throughout Eagleville Park as they are purchased. 

 
Camp Update: 

 

• Summer Camp is in full swing! A total of 340 campers are enrolled this year and will run through 

August 5th. Trips and special events planned for camps included Marsh Creek swimming, 

Limerick Bowl, Bike Safety Program, Urban Air, Bucks County River Tubing and much more. 

This year camp was a success but very challenging. We continued to deal with Covid as well as 

staffing concerns throughout the year. The Parks and Recreation staff was utilized and consumed 

all summer with keeping camp safe, staffed, and making sure the kids had FUN! 

• The Lil Perks program had its year inspection in early July with the State representative as part of 

our renewal process to renew our Certificate of Compliance License.  During this inspection, I 

will have to prepare and provide many documents to the representative and discuss the program 

at length. Also, there is a site visit to inspect the location where the Lil Perks program is held to 

ensure that the location is safe and meets all the code requirements. This process requires a lot of 

preparation and entails a great deal of time to prepare all the information requested by the State. 

As of July 21st, we were granted our renewal for our Lil Perks Program for 2023. 

• June 20th – August 5th – Oversee all camp sites and staff daily and continue to monitor any issues 

that arise. 

 



 

Parks: 

 

• GRL landscaping continues to mow and maintain all township properties throughout the 

township. We have an open line of communication with GRL and his staff if any concerns occur. 

• Continue to communicate with Mike Nester and Zach on any matters that need attention.  

• The Public Works Department assisted with various camp events.  

• Weekend pavilion rentals are reserved for the month of July. We’re already booked for every 

weekend in July and most of August. 

• The new ADA bottle filler fountains with attached pet fountain has been installed at Eagleville 

Park and is getting a lot of use from park visitors as well as our four-legged friends too. We are 

scheduled to install the same fountain at Eskie in August.  

• The Amphitheater is getting spruced up and ready to hold our Concert in the Park on Sunday 

August 21st at 6:00pm. 

• Parks staff continues keep all area parks maintained throughout the summer. 

 

Programs: 

 

• Summer Camp June 27th-August 5th  

• Young Rembrandt’s Creative Drawing 

• Jump Star Basketball Camp 

• Snapology Camp 

• Challenger Soccer Camp 

 

Upcoming Events: 

 

• Concert in the Park “Sunday, August 21st, 6:00-8:00pm -Todd O's "River of Dreams - Billy Joel 

Tribute” Get ready to experience an evening of Billy Joel music like never before. Todd and the 

band get the audience involved with all the legendary Billy Joel songs!  

• Movie in the Park “Clifford the Big Red Dog” -September 16thth at dusk. 

• 9/11 Memorial Event 

 

Facilities Maintenance: 

 

• Continue to clean Eagleville, Eskie and Evansburg Park bathrooms. They are on a cleaning 

rotation from April through November. 

• Continue to maintain the bathrooms at the MARA complex keep them stocked especially during 

tournaments that they host. 

• Trash is picked up weekly or as needed at area parks 

• Continue to inspect area parks daily 

 

Daily Tasks:  

 

• Return calls and emails daily. 

• Respond to requests from the residents.  

• Continue to participate in Zoom/ in person meetings and webinar with PRPS.  

• Continue to monitor and inspect area parks. 

• Update P & R web page, Facebook, Instagram, MyRec and the marquee as needed 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 

 

Jane C. Delaney 

Director of Parks and Recreation 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
Submitted By: Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 
POLICE FLEET  Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-21 Total 

Miles Traveled 23,670 24,530 24,533 24,829 19,839 166,300 
 

      

INCIDENTS Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Total 

Police Activity (CAD) 1,754 1,738 2,038 1,904 1,934 12,814 

         

ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Total 

Traffic Stops 359 370 457 437 413 2,810 

Traffic Citations 84 80 108 103 116 713 

Non-Traffic Citations 7 10 15 10 4 60 

Criminal Arrests 34 35 33 49 39 249 

Foot and Bike Patrols 198 174 179 195 179 1263 

Traffic Details 157 115 169 161 147 1004 

Public Contacts (Minimum) 787 832 950 890 860 5,918 

Formal Personnel Complaints 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Personnel Compliments 1 0 2 2 2 13 

         

JUVENILE CONTACTS Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Total 

Juvenile Contacts 42 52 56 43 41 308 

Juveniles Petitioned 1 0 2 2 0 6 

Warnings Issued 7 3 7 11 11 71 

Citations Issued 1 2 3 3 4 13 

Referral to Other Agencies 4 0 2 1 2 9 

        

ACCIDENTS Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Total 

Total Number of Accidents 39 50 51 56 30 304 

Reportable Accidents 11 14 16 23 13 109 

Non-Reportable Accidents 28 36 35 33 17 195 

 
 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
 

ALARM RESPONSES Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Total 

Total Alarms 53 72 57 51 68 398 

Security Alarms 39 58 49 36 53 296 

Fire Alarms 14 14 8 15 15 102 

       

DETECTIVE DIVISION Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Total 

Investigations 63 30 51 55 34 319 

       

SUBPOENAS FOR COURT  Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Total 

District Court 38-1-20 46 61 71 37 29 331 

Montgomery County  4 3 4 2 8 30 

All Others 4 0 0 0 0 9 

       

DUI TASK FORCE Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 0 0 24 0 0 32 

       

AGGRESSIVE DRIVING Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 8 8 33 5 0 54 

              

DRUG TASK FORCE Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 0 14 0 18 0 66 

       

PA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 10 10 15 9 0 70 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
The following is a list of Community Relations details for July 2022:   

 

On Friday, July 1, Sgt. Stead spoke with a group of children attending LP’s Parks & Recreation’s Camp 

L’il Perky about the role of a police officer in the community. 

 

On Saturday, July 9, Officer Foy attended the 3rd Annual Cars & Stars Car Show held in the parking lot 

of the Eagleville Plaza Shopping Center. The event raises money for local charities. 

 

On Monday, July 11, Sgt. Stead and Officer Barber conducted bike rodeos for campers attending the LP 

Parks & Recreation’s Camp Perkiomy at Woodland and Eagleville Elementary Schools.  

 

On Tuesday, July 12, Sgt. Stead and Intern Colby Goldsmith went on a tour of the Montgomery County 

Sheriff’s Office as part of the police department’s internship program. 

 

On Thursday, July 21, Chief Jackson, Lt. Hopkins & Sgt. Stead attended an in-service training day at 

the Arcola Intermediate School along with building administrators from the entire Methacton School 

District.  The purpose was to review safety plans and discuss additional training opportunities. 

 

The following is a list of notable TSU activities for July 2022:   

 

There were two (2) traffic complaints made by residents during the month. 

 

The portable speed display on Redtail Road between July 25-31 after a complaint was made by a resident 

about speeding vehicles. 

 

On July 22, Sgt. Stead assisted Squad A with a traffic detail targeting speeding vehicles on Ridge Pike 

near Steinbright Drive. 

 

Youth Aid Panel: 

 

The police department submitted three (3) juveniles to the Montgomery County District Attorney’s 

Office Youth Aid Panel Program.   

 

Curfew: 

 

Four (4) violations of the Township’s curfew ordinance occurred during the month. 

 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

JULY 2022 

Below is a list of some items that the Public Works Department accomplished during the month of July. 

• Meet with Jane Delaney daily to review/ discuss departmental needs 

• All PA One call notifications were reviewed, field marked and responded to appropriately 

• Director reviewed road opening permits, performed inspections where required  

• The department completed various and multiple building maintenance tasks  

• Street signs were repaired/replaced 

• Meet with PW Foreman to discuss work assignments and scheduling 

• Director had several meetings with staff on various topics 

• Mechanics performed routine maintenance on Township fleet and equipment 

• Director approved bills associated with the department 

• Janitor cleaned our buildings and Parks comfort stations during the month 

• PW & Parks guys did trash runs twice this week in our Parks. Every Monday and Friday 

• Director returned phone calls and emails addressing residents’ concerns  

• Director worked on the monthly report 

• Potholes were patched, crews went out with hot asphalt 

• Storm sewer inlets were cleaned prior to any rainstorms 

• PW crews continued preparing roads for 2022 Rd Projects, work includes pipe inspections, 

storm sewer inlet repairs   

• Multiple storm sewer inlet on various Twp roadways were repaired in place. Work associated  

includes cleaning out the inlet, repairing with brick, lintels and concrete. Replacing the top and 

restoration work. 

• I continued to work with our Twp Engineer and Fema for our reimbursement of funds. Fema 

has broken up our project into different projects, this will allow us to receive some funds 

• Traffic signals and streetlights were repaired during the month of June 

• A crew member came in over the weekends to clean for pavilion rentals 

• All crew members participated in the breakdown for the 4th of July celebration, work includes 

removing all fencing, picking up barricades and cones, taking back golf carts, removing no 

parking signs, and returned light towers 

• I continued to work with McMahon on the APS installation for Parklane/Ridge and Eagleville 

traffic signal, quotes are starting to come in for the work 

• 6 crew members work the 4th of July event 

• Delinquent properties were mowed with high grass violations, determined by Codes Dept 



• St Gab’s field was mowed by the Parks guys 

• The Director continued working on my 2023 Capital Budget along with obtaining pricing for 

new equipment needed now 

• A storm sewer pipe along Jode Rd was repaired, work included setting a new precast end wall, 

remove pipe and mortar back in, topsoil and seed 

• The electric to the comfort station located in Eagleville Park was repaired 

• The existing water fountain in Eagleville Park was removed and replaced with a new bottle filler 

type 

• The walking path from Sweetgum Rd to Eagleville Park was cleared and prepped for paving 

• Vascar lines requested by the Police were installed on 5 different roadways 

• Amphitheater was painted, snack bar at the football field was also painted 

• Crews repaired sections of broken fencing around our Twp owned detention basins 

• Crew members set up and came in to work the concert in the park event 

• Twp owned steps located between Mockingbird Ln and Meadowlark Rd were repaired. Along 

with a new railing 

• Thank you again for approving our two new trucks!!    

 

 

 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 Joseph Chillano 

      

 

 

























































































































































































































 

425 Commerce Drive, Suite 200, Fort Washington, PA 19034 
P: 215.283.9444 

mcmahonassociates.com | bowman.com 

August 11, 2022    

 

Mr. Michael Mrozinski         
Director of Community Development   
Lower Providence Township           
100 Parklane Drive           
Eagleville, PA 19403 
 
RE: Traffic Review #2 – Land Development Plans  
 Shannondell Phase 3 – 500 Age-Restricted Apartments  
 Lower Providence Township, Montgomery County, PA 
 McMahon Project No. 822247.11 

Dear Mike: 

Per the request of the Township, McMahon Associates, Inc. (McMahon) has prepared this letter that 
summarizes our second (2nd) review of the revised set of plans for the proposed Shannondell Phase 3 
development to be located to the north of Egypt Road (S.R. 4002) between Rittenhouse Road and 
Shannondell Boulevard in Lower Providence Township, Montgomery County, PA.  Based on our review of 
the submitted plans, Phase 3 of the proposed development will consist of approximately 500 age-restricted 
apartment units with access being provided via several internal access connections to Shannondell Drive.  
Previous land development plans for Phase 3 were approved by the Township in 2006; however, 
modifications have been made to the plans to account for stormwater and NPDES requirements that have 
changed since approval of the plans. 

The following document was reviewed and/or referenced in preparation of our traffic review: 

1. Land Development Plans – Shannondell Phase 3, prepared by Bursich Associates, last revised June 
20, 2022. 
 

Based on our review of the document listed above, McMahon offers the following comments for 
consideration by the Township and action by the applicant.   

General  

1. The applicant’s engineer has not provided a written response to the McMahon comments 
contained in our May 18, 2022 review letter.   Going forward, a response letter must be provided 
with the resubmission detailing how each comment in prior reviews and the comments below have 
been addressed, and where each can be found in the resubmission materials (i.e., page number(s)) 
to assist in the re-review process.  Some comments contained herein are reissued from the previous 
review because they have not been fully or satisfactorily addressed based on our review and 
information provided.  Additional comments may likely follow upon review of any resubmitted and 
more detailed plans/materials during the land development process.   
 

 

 



Mr. Michael Mrozinski 
August 11, 2022 

822247.11 
 

2 of 4    mcmahonassociates.com | bowman.com 

Land Development Plans 

2. Since traffic volumes and patterns along Egypt Road (S.R. 4002) in the vicinity of the site have 
changed since the approval of the master plan traffic study (i.e., 2006) for the overall Shannondell 
development, which included Phase 3, we recommend that the applicant’s traffic engineer should 
conduct a traffic analysis at the intersection of Egypt Road (S.R. 4002) and Shannondell Boulevard.  
The intersection evaluation should confirm that the intersection will operate at acceptable levels-
of-service upon the construction of Shannondell Phase 3 and determine if any signal 
timing/optimization modifications and/or geometric changes are needed at the intersection to 
improve intersection operations in order to mitigate any additional impact the Phase 3 
development will have in degrading operations, since this is the primary access into and out of the 
development.  

 
3. The turning templates should be revised to also demonstrate the ability of trash trucks and the 

largest expected delivery vehicle to maneuver into and out the driveway(s) along Shannondell Drive 
and entirely through the site.   
 

4. Based on review of the turning templates provided in the plan set, it appears as though the 
emergency vehicle will have difficulty maneuvering through portions of the site without running 
into or over the curb.  The turning templates must be revised to demonstrate the emergency vehicle 
can maneuver through the site without running onto the curb, or those portions of the site should 
be redesigned accordingly to accommodate this vehicle.  In addition, the pavement markings 
should be provided on the turning plans to ensure the turning movements will not conflict with 
parked vehicles.  

 
5. The Township Fire Marshal should review the emergency vehicle turning templates for accessibility 

and circulation needs of emergency apparatus.  Ensure that any correspondence, including any 
review comments and/or approvals, is included in subsequent submissions. 
 

6. A driveway to/from Egypt Road (S.R. 4002) that appears to be a potential emergency access, located 
on the west end of Phase 2 that is gated from accessing the property, should be further evaluated 
and the design refined as necessary with the addition of Phase 3.  It is unknown based on the grades 
of the site if that emergency access location is currently functional or would be able to be connected 
to the site for emergency accessibility.  It has also been discussed with the applicant that they 
should consider placement of this gated, emergency access near or along the farm road driveway 
at the west end of Phase 3 to/from Egypt Road (S.R. 4002) and possibly align it opposite Rittenhouse 
Road or any planned future relocation of Rittenhouse Road. The Fire Marshal and Township 
Engineer, in addition to our office, will review details when emergency access location and its design 
have been finalized.   
 

7. With Phase 3, and pursuant to addressing the conditions of previous comment letters with the 
phasing of the master plan of this project, the full-width widening and curbing along the frontage 
of Egypt Road (S.R. 4002) is recommended to be continued westerly from its current terminus just 
west of the Shannondell Boulevard intersection and extend westerly to the western property line 
and along additional properties controlled by the applicant.  The widening should be at least 26 
feet from centerline of Egypt Road (S.R. 4002) to allow for two future, westbound lanes to be 
provided on Egypt Road (S.R. 4002).  Any portion of the curb lane that is being tapered and 



Mr. Michael Mrozinski 
August 11, 2022 

822247.11 
 

3 of 4    mcmahonassociates.com | bowman.com 

transitioned back to a single westbound lane should be demarcated with the appropriate markings 
to indicate that it is not for travel lane use.  Should PennDOT or Montgomery County determine 
areas of the widening are to be striped for a dedicated bike lane, the applicant may have to revise 
the width of widening from a 12 foot inside lane and 14-foot curb lane (26 feet from centerline) in 
order to maintain the bike lane once two lanes are being utilized for traffic operational needs.   
 
Should the analyses requested in comment #2 reveal that the widening is not necessary at this time 
to mitigate intersection impacts especially in the westbound direction and should PennDOT prefer 
that the widening not occur at this time, the applicant must still illustrate and provide the necessary 
future widening design on the plans and ensure that the adequate widths and rights of way are 
made available for the widening to occur.  The Board of Supervisors may then defer the frontage 
roadway improvements until a time that either the Township and PennDOT determine it is 
necessary for traffic flow. We recommend that if the widening for the westbound lanes are not 
provided under the Phase 3 traffic evaluation at this time (2022), that the Township Board of 
Supervisors require the widening to occur within a 5-year timeframe (2027) to be designed and 
installed by the applicant/landowner upon Township and PennDOT approvals within that horizon 
year.  
 

8. The plans show a sidewalk along the property frontage (north side) of Egypt Road (S.R. 4002) and 
extending from the signalized intersection of Shannondell Boulevard to the western property line.  
The applicant’s engineer must confirm it is setback from Egypt Road (S.R. 4002) to allow for the 
roadway frontage widening discussed in the previous comments.  If bicycles will share the 
sidewalk/trail, it must be no less than 8-feet in width, desirably 10 feet.  If this trail widening is 
accomplished, then the need for Egypt Road to also accommodate an on-road bike lane in the 
westbound direction may be reduced.   
 

9. A stop bar is recommended to be shown on the plans at all stop sign locations throughout the site.   
 

10. The “Stop” sign along Drive B at its intersection with Shannondell Drive should be clearly labeled 
on the plans. 

 
11. A “Stop” sign and stop bar should be shown on the plans at all parking area drive aisle approaches 

to Drives B, C, and D. 
 

12. “Yield to Pedestrian” signs should be shown on the plans at the two crosswalks located along Drive 
‘B’ to the east of Building 13. 

 
13. Crosswalks should be shown on the plans across Shannondell Boulevard at the following locations: 

 
• Between the ADA ramp on the northern and southern sides of Shannondell Drive at Drive E. 
• Between the ADA ramps on the northern and southern sides of Shannondell Drive at Drive B. 

 
“Yield to Pedestrian” signs should be shown on the plans on both sides of these crosswalks. 

 
14. All curb ramps and pedestrian routes (i.e., sidewalks, crosswalks, etc.) are to be constructed in 

accordance with the current Federal and PennDOT ADA standards.  McMahon has not reviewed 



Mr. Michael Mrozinski 
August 11, 2022 

822247.11 
 

4 of 4    mcmahonassociates.com | bowman.com 

any ramps internal to the site, as the applicant’s engineer will be responsible for their design 
satisfying the required ADA standards. 
 

15. A PennDOT Highway Occupancy Permit (HOP) will be required for the provision of improvements 
completed within the legal right of way since Egypt Road (S.R. 4002) is a State Roadway.    The 
Township and our office must be copied on all HOP submissions, as well as correspondence 
between the applicant and PennDOT, and invited to any and all meetings among these parties. 

 
16. The applicant’s engineer should ensure that adequate sight distance is available for all vehicles 

exiting driveways and parking lots onto the proposed Drives and Shannondell Boulevard with the 
proposed design, and sight distances should be available in accordance with PennDOT standards. 
Sight lines should also be shown on the landscaping plans to ensure that no proposed landscaping 
will impact the required lines of sight to achieve at least minimum safe stopping sight distance.   

 
17. The applicant will be required to pay a Transportation Impact Fee for the proposed Shannondell 3 

development.  Per the previous agreement, a $500 per unit use and occupancy fee is to be paid by 
the applicant at time of occupancy.   Based on the plans submitted, Phase 3 is expected to consist 
of approximately 500 units, which results in a use and occupancy fee of $250,000. 

 
18. Based on our review, the applicant should address the aforementioned comments, and provide 

revised plans and materials to the Township and our office for further review and approval 
recommendations.  
 

We trust that this review letter responds to your request and satisfactorily addresses the traffic issues that 
are related to the proposed site modifications apparent to us at this time.  If you or the Township have any 
questions, or require clarification, please contact me, or Michelle Eve, P.E. 
 
Sincerely, 

 

Casey A. Moore, P.E. 
Executive Vice President – Corporate Operations 
 
BMJ/MEE/CAM 
cc: EJ Mentry, Township Manager 

Michael Clarke, Esquire, Rudolph Clarke (Township Solicitor) 
 Timothy Woodrow, P.E., Woodrow Engineers (Township Engineer) 
 Fran Hanney, PennDOT District 6-0 
 Scott Burton, PennDOT District 6-0 
 John Miklos, Montgomery County Planning Commission 

Nick Feola, P.E., Bursich Associates 
 

I:\eng\LOWERPR01\822247_Shannondell Phase III\Project Management\Submissions\2022-08-04 Land Development Plans\Out\2022-08-11 Shannondell 3 Review Letter #2 
(draft).docx 





















































































mmrozinski
Text Box
Please note that the Court of Common Pleas eliminated these conditions upon applicant's appeal 















































































PROPOSAL FOR SERVICES

Lower Providence Township

July 18, 2022



Table of Contents

SECTION PAGE

Scope of Services 1

Fees 2



Scope of Services

Audit
We will audit the financial statements of the Lower Providence Township for the years ending
December 31, 2022 through December 31, 2023. Our audits will be conducted in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, the standards for financial audits set forth in the U.S.
General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards, and the audit requirements of the
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance).

We will plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The audits will also include examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. Our objective will be the completion of the audits and,
upon their completion and subject to their findings, the rendering of our reports.

We will issue the following reports and schedules:

 A report on the fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with the modified cash
basis of accounting which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally
accepted accounting principles

 A report on the fair presentation of the Annual Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of
Community and Economic Development (DCED) Audit and Financial Report in accordance with
the accounting practices prescribed or permitted by DCED, which is a comprehensive basis of
accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

 Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

 Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance Required by Uniform Guidance, if applicable

 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, if applicable

 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, if applicable

 Other statements or reports to satisfy federal, state or local regulations or requirements

We will prepare for distribution the Data Collection Form (SF-SAC) for reporting on an audit of
states, local governments and nonprofit organizations, if applicable.

In connection with the audits, a letter that identifies deficiencies in internal control is prepared, if
necessary. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material misstatements of the organization’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

1



The reports on compliance and internal control will include all material instances of non-
compliance. All nonmaterial instances of non-compliance will be reported in a separate
management letter, which will be referred to in the report on compliance and internal controls.

We will review the financial statements and our significant deficiencies and/or advisory comments
letters prior to their issuance with key staff and the Board of Supervisors or a Committee of the
Board of Supervisors. Furthermore, we will be available to assist you in implementing any of the
recommendations, to the extent you deem appropriate.

Fees

We propose the fees in the table below for the audit services detailed in this proposal for Lower
Providence Township for the years ending December 31, 2022 through December 31, 2023.

The fee quotes above include all out-of-pocket costs. We also absorb the cost of periodic inquiries
and informal consultation.

2

Service 2022 Fee 2023 Fee

Audit $20,600 $20,600



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 

 
 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 

 

FROM: Denise Walsh 

   

DATE:  August 12, 2022 

 

RE: Item 3g – Selection of consultant for intersection improvement project 
   

 

 

An evaluation spreadsheet will be circulated by E.J. next week in advance of the meeting. 



LOWER PROVIDENCE FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 

3199 Ridge Pike  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lpfire.com 

Station: 610 539-5408   •   Fax: 610 539-8910 

 
 
 

July 15, 2022 

 

 

Lower Providence Township 

Mr. EJ Mentry, Township Manager 

100 Park Lane Drive 

Eagleville, PA 19403 

 

Dear Mr. Mentry, 

 

On behalf of Lower Providence Fire Department (LPFD) and the Montgomery County Hero Fund, please 

forward this request to the Board of Supervisors in reference to our very special event being held October 

2, 2022.  

 

As we have discussed, LPFD has been given the privilege to host the 1st annual 5K Brews & BBQ, right 

here in our community. As part of this process, we are acting in compliance with Township regulations, 

and are required to submit a request to operate outside of the prescribed hours for such an event, based on 

the request forwarded by Fire Marshal Rohlfing.   

 

LPFD is requesting the Boards consideration to extend the operational hours for this event on October 2, 

2022. The operational hours are scheduled to run from 8:00 AM and conclude at 6:00 PM. The itinerary 

as follows: 

 

• 8:00 AM Donut sale begins (Business as usual) 

• 5K kicks off at 11:00 AM 

• Festival begins at 12:30 PM 

• Concludes at 6:00 PM 

 

• Note: BBQ competitors will be on site as early as 5:00 AM to begin their timely process of set-up 

and smoking food to be ready for the 12:30 PM kick-off. We have designed the field layout to 

tuck them in near the existing buildings in the center of the fairgrounds to respect the neighbors. 

We have capped this at 25 Contestants, and we do not anticipate any disturbance. 

 

Thank you for your assistance and anticipated cooperation. Please contact me with any questions or 

concerns that may arise.  

 

 

Respectfully, 

 

 

JFL 
 

James Lentz, Fire Chief  

 

  



 

{01445082;v1} 

ORDINANCE NO. _________  

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, TO PROVIDE FOR THE CREATION OF THE LOWER PROVIDENCE 

TOWNSHIP HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION, AND TO PROHIBIT 

DISCRIMINATION IN HOUSING, COMMERCIAL PROPERTY, EMPLOYMENT AND 

PUBLIC ACCOMMODATIONS ON THE BASIS OF ACTUAL OR PERCEIVED RACE, 

COLOR, RELIGIOUS CREED, ANCESTRY, SEX, NATIONAL ORIGIN, VETERAN 

STATUS, HANDICAP OR DISABILITY, USE OF GUIDE OR SUPPORT ANIMALS 

BECAUSE OF THE BLINDNESS, DEAFNESS OR PHYSICAL HANDICAP OF THE USER 

OR BECAUSE THE USER IS A HANDLER OR TRAINER OF SUPPORT OR GUIDE 

ANIMALS, OR BECAUSE OF AN INDIVIDUAL'S SEXUAL ORIENTATION, GENDER 

IDENTITY OR GENDER EXPRESSION; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS; AND PROVIDING 

PENALTIES 

WHEREAS, the public policy of the United States of America, and the Commonwealth of 

Pennsylvania is grounded in the concept that all individuals are entitled to equality and equal 

protection under law, United States Constitution, Amendment 14; Constitution of the 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Article I, §§ 26, 28; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township, Montgomery 

County, finds that the population of the Township is reflective of the general population of the 

United States, in that it consists of a diverse array of persons representing different characteristics 

based upon actual or perceived race, color, religious creed, ancestry, sex, national origin, veteran 

status, handicap or use of guide or support animals because of blindness, deafness or physical 

handicap of the user or because the user is a handler or trainer of support or guide animals, or 

because of an individual's sexual orientation, gender identity or gender expression. 

WHEREAS, the Township prides itself on the diversity of its citizens and residents, and the 

harmonious relations which have been fostered in the Township by a widely practiced and 

recognized attitude of respect among all citizens of Lower Providence Township; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board of Supervisors finds that the direct and secondary 

negative effects of discrimination and discriminatory practices involving the personal characteristics 

described above in matters of employment, housing, commercial property and public 

accommodation are well known and have been extensively studied, documented and demonstrated; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the practice or policy of engaging in discrimination or discriminatory practices 

against any individual or group, because of actual or perceived race, color, religious creed, ancestry, 

sex, national origin, veteran status, handicap or use of guide or support animals because of 

blindness, deafness or physical handicap of the user or because the user is a handler or trainer of 

support or guide animals, or because of an individual's sexual orientation, gender identity or gender 

expression is a matter of highest public concern, and constitutes a paramount threat to the rights, 

privileges, peace and good order of the citizens of Lower Providence Township and to guests and 

visitors of Lower Providence Township, that undermines the basic tenets of our freedom as citizens 



 

{01445082;v1} 

of the United States, and is utterly without place in this Township, which has a storied tradition of 

fiercely defending the individual rights of its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board of Supervisors desires to establish and adopt an official 

policy of non-discrimination in Lower Providence Township, in all matters involving employment, 

housing and commercial property, and public accommodation; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is the intention of the Township Board of Supervisors, and it is 

hereby ORDAINED that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made part of 

the Code of Ordinances of the Township of Lower Providence, Pennsylvania, and the sections 

of this Ordinance may be renumbered to accomplish such intention, as follows: 

SECTION I.  Human Relations Commission. 

A. Short Title. This Ordinance shall be known as the "Lower Providence Township Human 

Relations Ordinance." 

B. Purpose and Declaration of Policy. 

1. Lower Providence Township finds that it is of high public importance to adopt 

appropriate legislation to insure that all persons, regardless of actual or perceived race, color, 

religious creed, ancestry, sex, national origin, veteran status, handicap, use of guide or support 

animals because of blindness, deafness or physical handicap of the user or the user is a handler or 

trainer of support or guide animals, or sexual orientation, gender identity or gender expression enjoy 

the full benefits of citizenship and are afforded equal opportunities for employment, housing and 

public accommodation. 

2. The Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township hereby declares it to be 

the public policy of the Township to foster equality and equal opportunity for all citizens, regardless 

of actual or perceived race, color, religious creed, ancestry, sex, national origin, veteran status, 

handicap or use of guide or support animals because of blindness, deafness or physical handicap of 

the user or because the user is a handler or trainer of support or guide animals, or because of an 

individual's sexual orientation, gender identity or gender expression in all matters effecting 

employment, housing and commercial property and public accommodation, and to safeguard the 

right of all persons to remain free of discrimination or discriminatory practices in any of the 

foregoing aspects of their lives. 

 

3. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed as supporting, endorsing or advocating 

any particular doctrine, point of view, or religious belief. On the contrary, it is the express purpose 

and intent of this Ordinance that all persons be treated fairly and equally, and that all persons in 

Lower Providence Township shall be guaranteed fair and equal treatment under law. 

4. This Ordinance shall be deemed an exercise of the police power of Lower 

Providence Township, as provided under the Pennsylvania Second Class Township Code, for the 

protection of the public welfare, prosperity, health and peace of the community of Lower Providence 

Township. 

C. Definitions. 



 

{01445082;v1} 

The following words and phrases, when appearing in this Ordinance, shall have the meanings given 

to them under this Section. 

TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: The Board of Supervisors of Lower 

Providence Township, Montgomery County. 

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY OR HOUSING: The opportunity for an individual to 

obtain any commercial property or housing accommodation for which he is qualified. 

DISCRIMINATION: Any discriminatory act(s) taken by any person, 

employer, entity, employment agency, or labor organization, with respect to or involving a 

transaction related to employment, public accommodations, on the basis of a person's actual or 

perceived race, color, religious creed, ancestry, sex, national origin, veteran status, handicap or use 

of guide or support animals because of blindness, deafness or physical handicap of the user or 

because the user is a handler or trainer of support or guide animals, or because of an individual's 

sexual orientation, gender identity or gender expression. 

DISCRIMINATORY ACTS:  All acts or actions defined in the Pennsylvania 

Human Relations Act as unlawful discriminatory practices as related to employment, public 

accommodations, publicly offered commercial property or housing accommodations actual or 

perceived race, color, religious creed, ancestry, sex, national origin, veteran status, handicap or use 

of guide or support animals because of blindness, deafness or physical handicap of the user or 

because the user is a handler or trainer of support or guide animals, or because of an individual's 

sexual orientation, gender identity or gender expression. 

EMPLOYEE: Does not include any individuals who, as a part of their employment, 

reside in the personal residence of the employer. 

 

EMPLOYER: Any person who employs four (4) or more employees, including the 

Township, its departments, boards and commissions, and any other government agency within the 

jurisdiction of the Township, save those of any government agency whose laws may be deemed 

preemptive of this Ordinance. 

 

EMPLOYMENT: The opportunity for an individual to obtain employment for which he 

is qualified. 

GENDER IDENTITY OR EXPRESSION: Self-perception, or perception by others, as 

male or female, including an individual's appearance, behavior, or physical characteristics, that may 

be in accord with, or opposed to, one's physical anatomy, chromosomal sex, or assigned sex at birth, 

and shall include, but is not limited to, persons who are undergoing or who have completed sex 

reassignment, are transgender or gender variant. 

ORDINANCE:  This Ordinance, which shall be referred to as the "Lower Providence 

Township Human Relations Ordinance." 

PERSON: Any natural person, fraternal, civic or other membership organization, 

corporation, general or limited partnership, proprietorship, limited liability company, or similar 

business organization, including the Township, its departments, boards and commissions, and any 



 

{01445082;v1} 

other for-profit and nonprofit organization. 

PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION: The opportunity for an individual to access food, 

beverages or lodging, resort or amusement which is open to, accepts or solicits the patronage of the 

general public, but shall not include any accommodations which are in their nature distinctly private. 

SEXUAL ORIENTATION: Actual or perceived homosexuality, heterosexuality and/or 

bisexuality. 

TOWNSHIP: Lower Providence Township, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania. 

Any terms of this Ordinance not expressly defined herein shall be construed in a manner consistent 

with the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act. 

D. Unlawful Practices. 

1. Discrimination in employment, housing and commercial property or any public 

accommodation is prohibited under this Ordinance. 

2. Retaliation against any individual because such person has opposed any practice 

forbidden by this Ordinance, or because such person has made a charge, testified, or assisted in any 

manner in any investigation or proceeding under this Ordinance is prohibited under this Ordinance.  

 

3. Aiding, abetting, inciting, compelling or coercing the doing of any act declared by 

this Ordinance to be an unlawful practice, or obstructing or preventing any person from complying 

with the provisions of this Ordinance is prohibited under this Ordinance. 

E. Exceptions. 

1. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, it shall not be an unlawful 

practice for a religious corporation or association to commit any of the acts as defined in Section I of 

this Ordinance. 

F. Establishment of Human Relations Commission. 

1. Pursuant to the authority set forth under § 962.1 of the Pennsylvania Human 

Relations Act, 43 P.S. § 962.1, there is hereby established a Human Relations Commission for 

Lower Providence Township, which shall be known as the "Lower Providence Township Human 

Relations Commission." 

2. The Lower Providence Township Human Relations Commission shall consist of four 

(4) members, who shall be appointed to terms of three (3) years by Lower Providence Board of 

Supervisors. The terms of the members of the Commission shall be staggered, such that the terms of 

one third (1/3) of the members of the Commission shall expire each year. All members of the 

Commission shall be residents or business owners of Lower Providence Township and shall serve 

without compensation. 

3. The Chairperson of the Commission will designate one member as needed to receive 

the complaint and conduct an intake meeting with the complainants. The member charged with this 



 

{01445082;v1} 

duty shall not participate in any mediations involving parties to the complaint for which they handled 

the intake nor shall this member vote on complaints brought in front of the Commission. 

4. The Human Relations Commission shall, annually, designate one member to serve 

as Chairperson of the Commission. The Chairman of Board of Supervisors shall be responsible for 

coordinating the activities, meetings, and operations of the Commission, as set forth under this 

Ordinance. The Chairperson shall also report, from time to time, to the Chairman of Board of 

Supervisors regarding the activities of the Commission. 

5. Members of the Commission shall, as soon after their appointment as practical, 

attend such training and education seminars or sessions as deemed necessary to acquaint themselves 

with the functioning of the Lower Providence Township Human Relations Commission under this 

Ordinance, as well as the terms, conditions and provisions of the Pennsylvania Human Relations 

Act, and the operation of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission. Such training and 

education shall be as directed by the Chairperson, and shall be performed in conjunction with the 

state Human Relations Commission. 

 

6. The Lower Providence Township Human Relations Commission shall have all of 

those powers necessary to execute the duties set forth under this Ordinance, provided that such 

powers shall not exceed those exercised by the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission under 

the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act. 

7. The Lower Providence Township Human Relations Commission shall operate within 

the scope of funds which may be allocated, on an annual basis, by the Board of Supervisors and shall 

not exceed the annual allocation in any year, except upon prior approval by the Board of 

Supervisors. In adopting this Ordinance, the Board of Supervisors hereby expresses its intention that 

the operation of the Lower Providence Township Human Relations Commission under this 

Ordinance shall be supported by volunteers, unpaid staff, and volunteer efforts and shall be as close 

to "zero-cost" to the Township as reasonably feasible. 

G. Complaint and Procedures for filing Complaints  

1. Complaints. 

a. Any person claiming to be aggrieved by a practice which is made unlawful 

under this Ordinance may make, sign and file a verified complaint, as provided under paragraph B of 

this Section, alleging violations of this Ordinance. Such complaint shall, at a minimum, contain the 

following information: 

i. The name, telephone number, mailing address and email (if 

applicable) of the aggrieved person(s); 

ii. The name, telephone number, mailing address and email (if 

applicable) of the person(s) alleged to have committed the prohibited practice; 

iii. A concise statement of the facts, including pertinent dates, time, 

locations, people, and acts involved constituting the alleged discriminatory practice; 

iv. Such other information as may be required by the 

Commission. 



 

{01445082;v1} 

b. Complaints may be filed in person at the office of the Township Manager, or 

by mailing such complaints to the Township offices, to the attention of the Township Manager or the 

member of the Commission designated to handle intake. All such complaints must be received by 

the Township within one hundred eighty (180) days of the occurrence of the last act giving rise to 

the complaint or such complaint shall be dismissed as untimely. 

c. The Township Manager shall transmit all complaints received to the 

Chairperson of the Commission not later than ten (10) days of receipt of the complaint. The 

Township Manager shall conspicuously mark the face of the complaint with the date the document 

was first received in the Township offices. 

 

d. The Commission may promulgate forms for use by persons wishing to file a 

complaint, however, complaints which are prepared without the use of an approved form shall be 

deemed acceptable under this Ordinance so long as the facts set forth under paragraph A of this 

Section can be clearly determined from the document submitted as a complaint. 

e. The Commission may provide for a process by which persons seeking to file 

a complaint may consult with a volunteer or other staff person affiliated with the Commission who is 

trained to assist the prospective complainant in discerning the facts relevant to the prospective 

complaint. Such process shall also include referral of additional information to the prospective 

complainant concerning the content of this Ordinance, the content of the Pennsylvania Human 

Relations Act, and the availability of the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission as an 

additional venue within which the prospective complainant may seek redress when possible. 

2. Notifications and Answer. 

a. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of a complaint, the Commission shall: 

i. Send a copy of the complaint to the person(s) charged with a 

discriminatory act or practice under this Ordinance (the "respondent"), together with a copy of this 

Ordinance. 

ii. Send a notice to the complainant, informing them that the complaint 

has been accepted and processed by the Commission. If the complaint alleges discrimination on a 

basis proscribed under federal or state law, the Notice shall also inform the complainant of his or her 

right to file a complaint with the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission or the federal Equal 

Employment Opportunity Commission as well as the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development, where applicable. 

iii. The Commission shall notify the Pennsylvania Human Relations 

Commission of the filing of any complaint that may be deemed to be within the jurisdiction of that 

Commission, as required under the Human Relations Act. 

iv. The Commission shall also include a notice to both the complainant 

and the respondent(s) of their option to elect to proceed to voluntary mediation in order to resolve 

the matters giving rise to the complaint. 

b. The respondent(s) shall file a written verified answer to the complaint within 



 

{01445082;v1} 

thirty (30) days of service of the complaint. An answer shall be filed in the same manner as a 

complaint.  

 
3. Mediation. 

a. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of an answer to a complaint, or, where no 

answer is filed, within sixty (60) days of service of the complaint upon the respondent(s), the 

Commission shall proceed in accordance with the following options: 

i. In the event that both parties have consented to mediation, under 

paragraph 2(A)(iv) of this Section, then the Commission shall refer the matter to a 

recognized alternative dispute resolution service, which same service may be 

provided through Montgomery County, the Montgomery County Bar Association, or 

any other professional mediation service provider, or may refer the matter to a 

licensed member of the Pennsylvania bar, who may be willing to perform service to 

the Commission as a volunteer mediator. Any costs or expenses which may be 

associated with the mediation shall be the responsibility of the parties. The parties 

shall jointly select the mediator; however, the Commission shall retain the authority 

to act as the mediator in the event the parties have agreed to mediation but cannot 

jointly agree on a mediator. Mediation sessions conducted by the Commission may 

proceed with a minimum of two eligible Commission Members. Mediation sessions 

shall remain private and not otherwise subject to public attendance. 

b. When mediation has resulted in an amicable resolution of the complaint and 

the complaint is resolved, the Commission shall notify the parties that the complaint has been 

dismissed, and shall record the result of the mediation in the Notice of dismissal. 

c. In the event the complaint has not been resolved through mediation the 

parties are entitled to proceed to the Court of Common Pleas in Montgomery County to pursue all 

available remedies afforded by the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act . 

H. Non-limitation of Remedies. 

Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall be deemed to limit the right of an aggrieved 

person to recover under any other applicable law or legal theory. 

I. Multiple Filings. 

This Ordinance shall have no jurisdiction over matters which are the subject of pending or 

prior filings made by an aggrieved person before any state or federal court or agency of competent 

jurisdiction. 

J. Penalties. 

Any person who shall violate any provision of Section I of this Ordinance may be subject by 

the Montgomery County Court of Common Pleas or any Court of competent jurisdiction to the 

penalties enumerated in Section 9(f)(1&2), Sections 9.2, 9.3, and Sections 10 & 11 of the 

Pennsylvania Human Relations Act. The penalties contained in this ordinance shall mirror any future 

changes to the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act as adopted by the General Assembly and 



 

{01445082;v1} 

approved by the Governor. 

1. This ordinance does not expand the remedies or penalties beyond those provided in 

the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act. To the extent any person elects to pursue legal action 

pursuant to the Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, such action must be brought in the Court of 

Common Pleas of Montgomery County. Any person who elects to pursue a claim in accordance with 

this ordinance will be limited to the rights and remedies outlined herein.  

SECTION II. Severability 

The terms, conditions and provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable, and, 

should any portion, part or provision of this Ordinance be found by a court of competent jurisdiction 

to be invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional, the Township Board of Supervisors hereby declares 

its intent that the Ordinance shall have been enacted without regard to the invalid, unenforceable, or 

unconstitutional portion, part or provision of this Ordinance. 

SECTION III.  Repealer 

Any and all other Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the terms, conditions and 

provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such irreconcilable conflict. 

ORDAINED AND ENACTED by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township, 

Montgomery County, Pennsylvania this __________day of ____________, 2022. 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF LOWER PROVIDENCE 

TOWNSHIP 

 

        

            

     BY:__________________________________________________ 

                   GARY NEIGHTS, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

 

 

    ATTEST:_____________________________________________ 

          E.J. MENTRY, MANAGER/SECRETARY 

    

 

 
 


	2a - BOS Minutes 2022-07-21
	2a - EAC Minutes 2022-06-20
	2a - Park and Rec Board Minutes  2022-06-21
	2a - Sewer Authority Minutes 2022-06-13
	2b- Monthly Reports
	Community Development
	Community Relations
	Finance
	Fire Marshal
	Parks and Recreation
	Police
	Public Works

	2c1 - Bill PayList
	2c2 - Treasurers Report
	3a - Shannondell Phase III final land develoment plan
	3a-Shannondell Phase III
	2022-08-11 Shannondell 3 Review Letter #2 (finalized)
	3a-Shannondell Phase III

	3b - Plan - Branca 420 Church Rd
	3b - Preliminary Land Development Plan - 420 Church Rd
	2
	1

	3e - Purchase of respository parcels from Montgomery County Tax Claims Bureau
	Tax Claim Bureau correspondence
	Map

	3f - BBD proposal for extension to audit services agreement
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4

	3g - Selection of consultant for intersection project
	3h - LPFD request for extension of special event hours
	3i - Anti-discrimination - human relations commission ordinance



